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lndependent Auditors' RePort

To,

The Members of

Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of FinancialStatements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

(,,the Company''), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Statement of Profit

and Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the Financial Statements,

including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after

referred to as "the Financial Statements")'

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (herein

after referred to as "the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity

with the lndian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the

companies (lndian Accounting standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (herein after referred as "the IND

AS,,) and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its

cash flows for the year ended on that date'

Basis of Our OPinion

we conducted our audit of Financial statements in accordance with the standard on Auditing

(herein after referred to as "sAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act' our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with

the code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia (herein after referred as

"lCAl") together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of Financial Statements

under the Provi sions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical

CK
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responsibilities in accordance with these requ irements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We beli

the audit evidence we have obtained is suffici ent and appropriate to provide a basis for
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide separate opinion on these matters.

We have found the following key audit matters which were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements:

Revenue Recognition

As the Company is involved in the construction
as well as development of infrastructures
projects, their revenue should be recognized
over a period of time in accordance with the
requirements of lnd AS 115, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Due to the nature of
the business, the entity shall use the percentage

of completion method in accounting for its

contracts. Use of the percentage of completion
method requires the entity to estimate the
costs incurred till date as a proportion of the
total cost to be incurred along with
identification of contractual obligations and the
entity's rights to receive payments for
performance completed till date, changes in

scope and consequential revised contract price

and recognition of the liability for loss making

contracts/onerous obligations. Costs incurred

have been used to measure progress towards
completion as there is a direct relationship.

While performing audit, we have found that the
company did not record any revenue till the
Balance sheet date. As the company has neither
entered in any contract for sale of such

inventories nor received any amount as

advance booking against inventory till the
Balance sheet date.

Since the Revenue is not recognized in this case,

therefore We have considered it a Key Audit
Matter.

Audit Procedures
We have performed the following audit
procedures in this regard :

Testing the design and implementation
of internal controls including control
over process for determining estimates

used as evaluating whether they are
operating effectively.

Testing related information used in

recording and disclosing revenue in
accordance with the new revenue

accounting standard.

Testing different sample of contracts for
identification of performance

obligations.

Reviewed the Company's process of
collecting information supporting the
basis for accrual of costs against work
performed upto the cut off dates.

Reviewed the design and operating
effectiveness of management's key

controls in collecting such data with
respect of costs,

a Reviewed the documents maintained

under RERA and various other
documents for not recognizing revenue

on the basis of percentage of
completion method.

a

a

a

a
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lnventory
ln Accordance with the lnd AS 2, lnventories
shall be measured at the lower of cost and net

realizable value. Cost of Construction work-in-
progress of constructed properties includes the
cost of land (including development rights and

land under agreements to purchase), internal
development costs, external development
charges, construction costs, overheads,

borrowing cost if inventorisation criteria are

met, development/ construction materials. Cost

of such project as on 31st March, 2025 is Rs.

35,18,83,135/-

Even after completing the Construction of Bus

stand portion, still company has neither entered
in any contract for sale of such inventory nor
has received any advance booking amount
against inventory till the Balance sheet date. So,

we reviewed the Valuation of lnventories to
identify the Net realizable value of the project.

Audit Procedures

We have performed the following audit
procedures in this regard :

Verify the documents filed with the
RERA Authority for cost incurred till
date

Verify the expenses incurred to bring
the lnventories in present condition

Verify the valuation report prepared by

third party and performed the
procedure as per the SA 520 - Using the
work of an Auditor's Expert.

Considered the Valuation report of
Valuer dated 27TH March, 2025 has

assessed that Construction of Bus stand
portion is almost completed and the
Construction work of Quarters and

workshops is yet to be started and

a Value of such completed project is as

follows:

Estimated Market Value of the Property
- Rs.7,14,32,11,0001-

Estimated Realizable Value of the
Property - Rs. 1,02,88,89,900/-

Estimated Distress Value of the
Property - Rs. 80,02,47,7001-

a

a

a

a

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report

Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other in

other information comprises the information included in the Management

Board's Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate G



Shareholder's lnformation, but does not include the Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial

Statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 13a(5) of the Act,

with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the

financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash

flows of the Company in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards (lND AS) specified under

the Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to i

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assr

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always



misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the

Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company

to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

a

a

a

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors

in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate w

t

Yi ri ,\t,'

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our ind
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where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The balance sheet, the Statement of profit and loss including Comprehensive lncome,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the IND AS specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31'tMarch,

2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31'tMarch, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 7U (2l.of the Act.

f) Since the Company's turnover as per last audited financial statements is less than Rs.50

Crores and its borrowings from banks and financial institutions at any time during the year is

less than Rs.25 Crores, the Company is exempted from getting an audit opinion with respect

to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company

and the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

ln our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the information given to

us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance

with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2O!4, in our opinion and to

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not having any pending litigation, therefore, the impact

the best



tv,

litigation on its Financial Statement is not disclosed.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

During the year, there were no amounts which are required to be transferred, to the

lnvestor's Education and Protection Fund by the company.

i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(Which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of

funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity

("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the lntermediary shall:

o directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Holding

Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in lndia or

o provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries

ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the

Company to or any other person or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

o directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Parties

or

o provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries

iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)

above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The company or its holding company has not declared and paid any dividend during the

year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting

software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail

(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions

recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with'

As provision to Rule 3(1)of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April L,

2024, reporting under Rule 11 (e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on

preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not

applicable for the financial year ended March 37,2025'

Z. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,

the ,,Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4

to the extent aPPlicable.



Annexure A to the lndependent Auditor/s report on the Financial Statements of Nila Terminals

(Amreli) Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of

our report to the Members of Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and

the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

ln respect of The Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible assets:

(a) {A) The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and do not

possess any right-of-use assets. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iXaXA) is not

applicable.

(B) The company does not have intangible asset; hence, reporting under clause

3(iXaXS) is not applicable.

(b) The company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment so the program of

physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment, and right-of-use assets to

cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of records, we report that, the company does not own any immovable

properties and hence reporting under clause 3{iXc) of the order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and

Equipment, including right-of-use assets and intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are

pending against the company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property

under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988(as amended in 2015) and

rules made thereunder.

il,

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the physical verification of inventory has been conducted at

reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion the coverage and

procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. There is no

discrepancies of 7O% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory was

noticed.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5'00/-

Crores, in aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial

institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under

clause 3(iixb) of the order is not applicable.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during

the year, The company has not made any investments in, provided any
ill

security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,

t.
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v,

vii,

VI

unsecured, to companies, firms, LLPS and granted unsecured loans to other parties,

during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or

stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and

hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable.

tb) The company has not made any lnvestments or not provided any guarantees or not

given any security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under

clause 3(iii) (b) of the order is not applicable.

(c) The company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or

stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and

hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) The company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or

stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and

hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) No loan granted by the company which has fallen due during the year, has been

renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans

given to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the company has not granted any loans and advances in

the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or

period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) (f) is not

applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the company has complied with the provisions of sections

185 and 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments

made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable'

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the company has not accepted any deposit or amounts

which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is

not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by

the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,

2013 for the business activities carried out by the company. Hence reporting under

clause (vi) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, in our opinion:

(a) the company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,

including GSI Provident fund, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, duty of custom, VA

other material statutory dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities

T. Cess and
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Further, there were no undisputed amounts outstanding at the year-end for a

period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information provided there are no statutory dues which have not

been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under

the lncome Tax Act, 1951(43 of 1961). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(viii) of the

order is not applicable.

(a) The company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender and

hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the company has not

been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or any other

lender.

(c) lhe company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no

outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under

clause 3(ix) (c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) The company has not raised any funds for short term basis, hence reporting under

clause 3(ix) (d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, on an overall examination of the financial statements of the

company, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on

account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate companies and

hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable'

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the company has not raised any loans during the year on

the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies and hence

reporting under clause 3(ixXf) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, the company has not raised the money by the Way of initial

public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) during the year and

hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable'

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, during the year the company has not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debenture (fully or partly or

optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and
xt.

examination of records, no fraud by the Company and on the Co



xii.

xilt

xiv

xv.
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(a)

(b)

noticed or reported during the year covered by our audit and hence reporting under

clause 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the

Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during

the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) We have been informed that there is no whistle-blower complaints received by the

company during the year (and upto the date of this report) and hence reporting

under clause 3(xiXc) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the

Order is not applicable.

ln our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section L77 and 188 of the

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties

and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial

statements as required by the applicable IND AS.

The Company does not have system of lnternal Audit.

The Company do not have system of lnternal Audit, and hence reporting under

clause 3(xivXb) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our

examination of records, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered

into non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors

and hence reporting under clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve

Bank of lndia Act 1934 (2 of 1934) and hence reporting under clause 3(xviXa) of the

order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking

Financial or Housing Finance activities and hence reporting under clause 3(xviXb) of

the order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our

examination of the records, the Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as

defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of lndia, and hence reporting

under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) ln our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in

the Core lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direction

reporting under clause 3(xviXd) of the order is not applicable.

s 2015) and

t



xix.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year under review.

Sr. No. Financial Year Cash losses
(Amoun in Rs. Lacs)

1. 2023-24 Rs.0.43/-

2. 2024-25 Rs. 5.37l-

xviii. There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year.

On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the

financial statements and our knowledge of the board of directors and management

plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has come to come our attention, which causes us to believe that any

material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report indicating that company is

not capable of meeting its liability existing at the date of balance sheet as and when

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however

state that this is not an assurance as to future viability of the company. We further

state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of audit report and we

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities failing due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company

as and when they fall due.

xx.

(a) The Section 135 and related provisions of the CSR is not applicable to the company,

and hence reporting under clause 3(xxXa) of the order is not applicable.

xxi.

(b) The Section 135 and related provisions of the CSR is not applicable to the company,

and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the order is not applicable.

The Company do not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statement and

hence reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For Piyush J. Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:

S. Vijayvargiya

Partner

M. No:165063

U DIN : 251650638MGXXS3128

Place: Ahmedabad

Date:1st May,2025



Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31* March, 2025

Particularc Not€
Amount in

Laca

31-Mar-2025

Amount in

Lacs

31-Mar-2024
r. AssETs

1 Non-currcnt assets

(a) Property, plant & Equipment & lntangible Assets

(b) Capital work in progress

(c) lnvestment properties
(d) Goodwill
(e) Other intangible assets

(f) lntangible assets under development
(g) Biological assets other than bearer plants
(h) Financial assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) loans
(iv) Others

(d) Defened tax assets (net)
(e) Other Non-current assets

2 Currnt ass€ts

(a) lnventories
(b) Biological Assets

(c) Financial assets

(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade receivables

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above

(v) Loans

(vi) Others

(d) Current tax assets (net)

(e) Other current assets

II. EQUITY AND IIABITITIES

1 Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

2 Liabilitics
Non-current liabiliti6
(a) Financialliabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ia) Lease Liabilities

(ii) Trade payables

(iii) other financial liabilities (other than

those specified in (ii))

(b) Provisions

(c) Deterred tax liabilities (net)
(d) other non.current liabilities

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

l0

0.05 0.05

49.03

0.05 49.08

3,518.83

1.48

52.36

o.37

354.32

3,331.05

1.05

o.v
354.28

4,027.36 3,686.73

4,027,4L 3,73S.82

1.00

{9.1s}

1.00
(3.78)

(8.1s) (2.78)



3 Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ia) Lease Liabilities
(ii) Trade payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than

those specified in (c))
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

(d) Current tax liabilities {net}

11

x2

,i]

t4

97A.22

3,111.21

6.14

528.14

3,105.55

4.90

4035.57 3,738.60

4,027.41 3,735.82

Summary of material accounting policies 01to 38

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

For Piyush J. Shah & Co,

Chartered Accountants
FRN r 121172W

lt,ttt
S. Vijayvargiya

Partner

M. No, 165O53

UDIN:- 251650638MGXXS3128

Placc: Ahmedabad

Datc :1st May,2025

Deep S. Vadodaria
Director
DtN - 01284293

+
Jignesh D. Patel

Dircctor

DrN - 07773896



Nila Terminals (Amreli| Private Limited

Profit and loss statement for the r ended 31't 2025

01 to 38

For & On Behalf of Boand Of Dircctors of
Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies

Thc accompanyint notes art an intcgral part of thc financial statements'

For Piyush J. Shah & Co.

Chartercd Accountants

FRN:

5. Vijayvargiya

Partner
M, No, 155063

UDINr 251550638MGXXS3128

Place r Ahmedabad

Oate :1st May,2025

W
Deep S, Vadodaria

Director
DtN - 01284293

t
Jignesh D, Patel

Director
DtN - 0777:]896

Particulars Note
Amount in

Lacs

202+25

Amount in
Lacs

2023-24

o.o2

0.02

287,78

(287.781

o,oz

5.37

227.54

1228.-2sl

0,15

L.O2

5,39 0.43

(s.37) (0.43)

{s.37) (0.43)

|s.37 (0.43)

(s.371 (0.43)

(s.37) (0.43)

20

15

16

t7

18

19

(s3.7s)

(s3.7s)
(s3.7s)

(4.28)

(4.28)

(4.28)

l. Revenue from operations
ll. Other lncome

lll, Total lncome (l + ll)
lV. Expenses:

Cost of Nila Terminal Project
Purchase of stock in trade
Changes in lnventories of finished goods, stock in trade & WIP

Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expens€s

Total crpcnscs (lV)

V. ProfiV{toss} beforc exccptional items and tax (lll-lV}
Vl. Exccptional items

Vll. ProfiV{toss} before tax (V - Vl)
Vlll. Tax expenses

(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
(3) Short / {Excess) Provision

lX. ProfrV(toss) for thc pcriod from conUnuing operations (Vll- Vlll)
X. Profit/(toss) for the period from discontinued operations
Xl, Tax expenses of discontinued operations

Xll. Profit/(Loss) after tax for the period from discontinued operations (X-Xl)

Xlll, ProfiU(toss) forthc period

xlV. Other comprehensive income

A) (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

B) (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified

to profit or loss

XV, Total Comprchcnslvc lncomc forthc period (Xlll+XlV)

(Comprising Profit/(toss)
and othcr comprchensivc income for thc pcriod)

Xll [arnings per equity share (for continuing operations):
(2) Diluted

Xll Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations):
(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

Xll Earnings per equityshare {for discontinued & continuingoperations):
(1) Basic

{2) Diluted



Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 38

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2n
st

For & on Behalf of Board Of Directors of
Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

For Piyush J. Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 121

s.

Partner

M. No. 165063

U Dl N :- 2516 5O63BMGXXS31 28

Place : Ahmedabad

Date :lst May'2O25

W
Deep S. Vadodaria

Director
DtN - 01284293

1
Jignesh D. Patel

Director
DtN - 07773896

Amount in
Lacs

2024-25

Amount in
Lacs

2023-24

PARTICULARS

(s.37)

0.02

(0.43)

o.16

lo.27l(s.3s)

(287.78)

49.03
(s2.43)

1.25

5.65

(28e.63)

1228.291
(3.08)

(33.02)
(0.24)

(82.04)

(15.ss)

199.41

(82.04){28s.63)

290.08
(0.02)

42.61

(o.16)

82.45290.05

0.41

0.651.06

o.42

1.48 1.O5

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss

Adjusted for:
Depreciation & amortization

lnterest income on loans & advances given

lnterest & finance costs

Operating cash flow before working capital changes

(lncrease)/ decrease in inventories
(lncrease)/ decrease in Financial Assets

(lncrease)/ decrease in other current assets

(lncrease)/ decrease in other current liabilities

(lncrease)/ decrease in other non current assets

lncrease/ (decrease) in trade payables

lncrease/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities

lncrease/ (decrease) in short term provisions

Cash generated from / {used in) operations
lncome taxes paid

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities IAI

Cash flow from investing activities:
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

lncrease/ decrease in short term loans and advances

lnterest income on loans & advances given

Purchase of longterm investments

Net cash flow from/(used) in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares / Addition in Capital

Proceeds from long term borrowing (net)

Proceeds from short term borrowing (net)

lnterest & finance costs

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents [A+B+C]

& cash equivalents as at beginning ofthe year

& cash equivalents as at end of the year lRefer Note-4]
lc"rr,

lcasr,

2024-25 2023-24Cash & Cash equivalents consist of
0.04

1.03

0.04

L.44
Cash & Cash equivalent

Bank Balance other than mentioned above
1.48 1.06Total



Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31st March,2O25

A Equity Share Capita!:

1) Current Period

2) Previous Period

B Other Equity:

Balance as at April OL,2024

Profit/(Loss) for the period

Reclassification of OCI into Retained earning
'comprehensive income for the year

comprehensive income for the guarter

Balance as at March 31, 2025

For Piyush J. Shah & Co

Chartereci Accountants

FRN : 121 72W

A nd S. Vijayvargi

Partner
M. No. 165063

UDlttr:- ?51650658MGXXS3 I

Prace 'AhmeCabad

Date :lst May,2025

(Amourt ln Lacs)

0.43

13.78

For & On Behalf of Board Of Direclors

Nila Termirrals (Amreli) Private Ljmited

W
Deep S. Va<lodaria

0irector
DtN - 012E4293

t
Jignesh D. Patel

Director

DtN - 07773896

Balances at the end of
the reporting period

Changes in Equity

Share Capital due

to prior period

errors

Restated balance

at the beginning of
the current

reportins period

Changes in equity capital during
the year

Balances at the beglnning

of the reporting period

1.001.00

Changes in equity share capital
previous year

Balances at the end of
the reporting period

Balances at the beginning

of the previous reporting
period

Changes in Equity

Share Capital due

to prior period

errors

Restated balance

at the beginning of
the previous

reporting period
1.001.00

Particulars Reserves & Surplus Other

Comprehensive

lncome

Total

Securities premium

reserves

Retained

earnings

(o.oo) (o.oo)

(s.37) (s.37)

(s.37) (s.37)

(s.37) (s.37)

(3..2 5) {3 _?5)

(0.43)

(0.43)

(3.78)

tNol A

;

Balance as at April Ol,2023
Profit/(Loss) for the period

Other comprehensive inccme for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024



Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited

Note: 1

Note: A

The Company is involved in the construction as well as development of infrastructures projects on behalf of Nila lnfrastructure

Limited for GSRTC Tender work at Amreli, Gujarat.

The financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 are approved by the Board of Directors and authorised

for issue on 1st May 2025.

Basis of preparation and measurement

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') as per the Companies

(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and other relevant

provisions of the Act. The financial statements for the quarter ended 31 December 2024. Details of the Company's material

accounting policies are included in note given below.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees ({), which is also the Company's functional currency. All the amounts

have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Summarv of material accounting oolicies:

t. Basis of preparation and measurement

i) The financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis in accordance with applicable lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)

and on accounting principles of going concern except current investments which are measured at fair values. These financial

statements have been prepared to comply with all material aspects with the lndian accounting standards notified under section

133 of the Act, (the "Act") read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii) Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a

revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policies hitherto in use.

iii) As the quarter and year figures are taken from the source and rounded to the nearest digits, the figures already reported for all

the quarters during the year might not always add up to the year figures reported in this statement.

iv) All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other

criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for

processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the

purpose of current classification of assets and liabilities.

2. Use of estimates and iudgements
i) The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lndian GAAP requires judgments, estimates and assumptions to be

made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial

statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results

and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialized.

Ir{DrI

General lnformation:
Nila Terminal (Amreli) Private Limited (ClN U45309GJ2017PTC096801) is incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956/2013 with

its registered office at First Floor, Sambhaav House, Opp: Chief Justice's Bungalow, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad Gujarat-380015.



3. Propefi, Plant & Equipement

There is No PPE in the Block of Asset.

4. Depreciation

There is No Depreciable Asset in the Block of Asset.

5. Revenue Recognition

(i) Construction and infrastructurc contracts

Revenue:

Revenue should be recognized over a period of time in accordance with the requirements of lnd AS 115, Revenue from

Contracts with Customers. Due to the nature of the business, the entity shall use the percentage of completion method in

accounting for its contracts. Use of the percentage of completion method requires the entity to estimate the costs incurred till
date as a proportion of the total cost to be incurred along with identification of contractual obligations and the entity's rights to
receive payments for performance completed till date, changes in scope and consequential revised contract price and

recognition of the liability for loss making contracts/onerous obligations. Costs incurred have been used to measure progress

towards completion as there is a direct relationship.

The percentage of completion method calculates the ongoing recognition of revenue and expenses related to longer-term
projects based on the proportion of work completed. The method works best when it is reasonably possible to estimate the

stages of project completion on an ongoing basis, or at least to estimate the remaining costs to complete a project. Conversely,

this method should not be used when there are significant uncertainties about the percentage of completion or the remaining

costs to be incurred.

ContrEct balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or seryices transferred to the customer e.g. unbilled

revenue. lf the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or

before payment is due, a contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised forthe earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is

required before payment of consideration is due.

6. lnventories

ln Accordance with the lnd AS 2, lnventories, lnventories shall be measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties includes the cost of land (including development rights and

land under agreements to purchase), internal development costs, external development charges, construction costs, overheads,

borrowing cost if inventorisation criteria are met, development/ construction materials. Cost of such project as on 31st March,

2025 is Rs. 36,18,83,135/-

Project inventories
lnventories of project materials are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Cost is arrived at on weighted

average method (WAM) basis.

Work-in-progress

Construction and development of lnfrastructure project:

Cost incurred for the contract that relate to future activity of the contract, such contract cost are recognized as an asset but the

same is not in recoverable stage as there is no sale contract with any party. Such costs represent impairement loss.



7. lncome Taxes

lncome tax comprises of current and deferred tax. lt is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that
it is relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in OCl.

Current t.x
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax

amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.

It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets and

current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to

realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in

respect of carried forurard tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

8. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provision is recognized in the accounts when there is a present obligation as a result of past event(s) and it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted

to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote, if any,

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

9. Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other

criteria set out in Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 2013. Operating cycle for project related assets and liabilities is the time

start of the project to their realization in cash or cash equivalents. Operating cycle for all other assets and liabilities has been

considered as twelve months.

10. lmpairment

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For the

purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that

are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. lf any

such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying

value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an

asset's or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash

flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also

done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior

accoucocnition. The Companv's trade receivables do not contai

11. Other lncome

lnterest income from financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the amount of income can be measured reliably. lnterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal

outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income and share of profit in LLP is recognized when the right to receive the same is

the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Comoanv and amount can be

establ that



L2. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. lnvestment income earned on temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization, if any.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
oeriod in which thev occur. if anv.

13. Segment Reportin3

i) The Company deals in only one segment i.e. construction as well as development of infrastructures projects. Therefore

Segment reporting is not provided.

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand

deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less and other short term highly liquid, if any.

15 Bank balance Otherthen Cash & Cash Equivalents

Short-term deposits include fixed deposits with scheduled banks made for periods exceeding three months but not exceeding

twelve months. These deposits are maintained for working capital and project-related funding requirements and are classified

under current assets as they are expected to be liquidated within the operating cycle.

15. Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented is adjusted for events such as bonus shares, other

than conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a

corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity

shares.

L7. Criticat Accounting Judgments, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously

evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Judgements

ln the process of applying the company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements:

a) Determination of Functional Currency

Currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates ("the functional currency") is lndian Rupee (Rs)

in which the Company primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional currency

to be lndian Rupee (Rs) i.e. Rs in Lakhs.

b) Evaluation of lndicators for lmpairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Company does not hold any kind of PPE during the year'

tiot r

a

+
o



ii) Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties
lnformation about estimates and assumptions that have the significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

a) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/lntangible Assets
Company does not hold any kind of PPE during the year.

b) Contingent Liabilities
ln the normal course of business, Contingent Liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. Potential
liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent
liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the Notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither
recognised nor disclosed as contingent liability. The management decides whether the matters need to be classified as

'remote','possible'or'probable'based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.

c) Evaluation of lndicatorc for lmpairment of Property, Plant and Equipment
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline
in asset's value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical

damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the idle assets etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable

amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment and such assessment is based on estimates, future plans as envisaged by the
Companv.

d) Provisions
Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds

resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition

and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be

subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of
changing facts and circumstances.

18. Financiallnstruments

Financia! Assets

Classification
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income or fair value through profit and loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

lnitial recognition and measurement
On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value, in case of financial assets which are recognized at fair value

through the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. ln

other case, the transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at
Financial assets !t rmortized cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. lnterest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and

impairment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in the Statement

of Profit and Loss.

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPI): These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including

any interest or dividend income, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

recognized as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of

the investment. Other net gains or losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

,+

o

J.
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business model for managing financial assets

;

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its



Equity instrument
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, on

initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an

instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognized as other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends,
on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCl. Amounts recognized in OCI are not subsequently reclassified

to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognized as'other income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognhion

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of the financial asset) is primarily derecognized when:

a) The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
b) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

c) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in

FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per lnd AS 109, the Company recognizes 12 month

expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset

has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit

losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do

not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life
time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in Statement of Profit and

Financial liabilities
lnitial recognition rnd measurement
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial

liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fairvalue through profit

and loss. ln case of trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at

amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

Subsequent mersurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value

through Statement of Profit and Loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet date if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle them on net basis or to realize the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,



Nila Terminals (Amrelil Private Limited

2 Oth.E:

P.rticulaE A3 At
31-G-2025

As At
31-03-2024

T.rm De@sit with Bank

Amount ln (1.c.) Amourt ln lL.cs)

49.03

TorALa i 49.03

3 Othsr l,lon-currsnt asts

P. rticula r A5 At
31-G-2025

As At
31-03-2024

ilon-Curnrt ln6!imnt-Unquotad Equity Sh.ru
Mehsana Urban Crcp Bank Ltd.

Amount ln lRll Amount ln lRsl

0.05 0.05

TorAr t : o.05 0.05

9. No. Nmc ol t,tc cmpey Ouotld/Unquot d clarrilicetion No. ot 5h[6

1 Mehsan. Urban CoOp Bank Limited Unquotcd 10,000

4 lnwntorica:

5 Cash & ctsh.quiwbtrit:

Panicula6 Ar At
3t-G-2025

Ar At
31.{B"2etl

cash On Hand

Balanccs in Bank accounts

Amount ln (Lacs) Amourt ln {l,.ca}

0.04

1.44

0.04

1.03

TorAL(: 1.48 1.06

6 Bank b.hnc. othcrthrn abow:

Ar At
31-@-2m5

As At
31-03-2024

Bank balance other than above:

Amourlt ln lLacr) Amount ln (Lacr)

52.36

52,36

7 Currcrt trx asratti

P.niculsE AS At
3L-03-2025

AsAt
3t-@-2@a

R6iwbhfrcmGilmmnt
TDs Recivable

Amount ln {Lrca} Amount ln (L.cr)

o.37 0.34

TOTALI: 0.37 0.34

8 Othor currant asts;

PirticuhR A3 At
31-G-2025

As At
31-03-2024

GST Reccivablc

Advancc to Supplicr

Prapaid Expcns6

Amouil In (L.cal Amunt ln (Lrq)

352.34

0.03

1.95

353.94

0.03

0.31

TOTAIT: 354.32 354.28

PaniculaE Ar At
31-(B-2025

As At
31-03-2024

Worl ln Progrcss

( lMntorhr.nt.hn, El6d rlid c.rtifi.d byth! mn.t mntl

Amourit ln lLa.s) Amum ln (1.6)

3,518.E3 3,331.05

ToTAL(: 3,618.83 3,331.0s

lNol a



9 Equity sh.r..pit.l:

Prrticul.E A. At
31-03-2025

As At
31-03-2024

Adhorird:
Equity she6 10,0@ of Rs.10 Each

lswd, Subrribrd rnd P.id up:
EquitY sharcs 10,000 of Rs.10 Each

Afrount ln (L.cs) Amount ln (L.csl

1_O0 1.@

1.00 1.00

ToTALt I 1.00 1.m

9.1 shrrcholding of Prorct.B:

Shercs hald bv oromot.B.t th. .nd of th. rc., 131-M.,'2025) % chrrBs du.i.f,
tht yo.r5r. llo. Promotor Namo No, of Sharor % o{ Tot.l Sh.ro3

1 Nila lnf rastructu.e Limited 10,000 100.00%

X chrryt during

th. yo.rSr. No. Paomotrr Nrm tlo, of Sh.rar %of Tot.lshircg
1 N ila I nf rastructure Limited 10,000 100.00%

9.2 Th. h.ib of shrrrhoHrr hoHiq mr th.n 5% shir.5

N.m. of shiroholdcr A5 At
31.o3.2025

As At
a1a-4il

No. Ot Shar.t % Hold l.lo. of sherar No, of sharei

Nila lnfrastructu16 Limited (sub Note:1) 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00%

10,000 1m.m96 10,0@ 1oo.(x)96

Sub ltotr I Thc Nila Tcrminals (Amrcli) Privatc Limitcd is a WOS (Wholly Own Sub6idary) of thc Nila lnfr.struclurca Limited.

9.! Th. R@Bili.tion of t5. of rhro otnta.ndrlrt b et ou b.low:

PrrticuL6
Ar At

31-G-202s

Ar At
3l-@-2@a

ilo. Amunt ln lLscrl No, Amount ln (L.cs)

Equity shares at the beginning of the year

Add: Shares issued as Bonus

10,000 1.00 10,000 1.m

EouitY Sha16.t the .nd ortho Ye.r 10,m 1.@ 10,000 1.OO

l0 Othoroquity:

P.nicul.E
A. At

31.@-2025

Ar At
31-(B-2@4

R.t imd E.mil8r
Opcning Balancc

Add: Profit forthe ycar

Less: Adjunmcnts
Cl6in8 &lancc

Amourt ln (Lacs) Amount ln lL.cE)

(3.78)

(s.37)

(3.35)

(0.43)

(e.1s) (3.781

TOTAL?: (e.1s)

,.1 Borrcwingr

PirtiGul.B

Tarm Short-Term

A3At

31-03-2025

Ar At
31.&i-20:14

A5 At
31.6-2025

A3At
3t-(B-202.it

Ureund Eorrcwing:

From Holdingcompany

S.cur.d BonowinSl

From Bank

Arcunt ln (Lrcsl Amount ln lLtcj Amurn ln (Licsl Amount ln ll.cs)

627.47

0.27

TOTATT: 974.22 628.14

rr-2O241

t3

Lol



12 Trsd. pry.blc;

Pa rticulaE
Ar At

31.{B-2025

Ar At
31.{n.2g2tl

Tr.d. P.y.bL:
Total outstanding du6 of mlcrc antarprles and 3mall cntcrpris
Total outstandinE dues of creditore other than micro enterprises and small .nterpris.s

Amount ln lL..tl Amount ln (La€s)

TOTAL(:

P.rticul.r odn.ndint for following periods frcm due d.t. of p.ymont A. At
3l-G-2025

Lss thrn I Y"rr 1-2 Y6aB 2-3 Yee6 Mgra than 3 YG.B Totrl

(, MSME

(ii) otheB
(iii) Diputcd ducs-MSME
(iv) Diputcd du6€the6

Padicula6 Outrt.nding for follawint pGriodsfrom duo drto of p.ymam Ar At
3t-(B.2m4

Los th.n 1 Yorr 1-2 Y..B 2-3 Y..B MoB th.n 3 Yo.E Tot.l

(0 MSME

(ii) Oth.R
(iii) Diputld du6-MsME
(iv) Diputcd dues-otheB

13 Oth.r timmhl Li.biliti.i:

Particulaft Ar At
31-o:i-2025

As At
31-CB-2024

oth.. P.yabhs

Amount ln 11..3) Amunt ln {L.ca)

3,111.21 3,105.56

TOTAL.; 3,111.21 3,105.55

sub tlotlr 1 Othcr Payable includcs adyanc6 from supplicrs

14 oth.r currnt lhbilhi.t

Particula15 At At
31.{B-2025

A. At
31.@-2@.4

TOS Payablc

Provision for ExpensE

Amount ln lLacs) Amount ln (l,.ca)

5.50

0.54

4.35

0.s4

TOTALT: 6.14 4.90

15 Othrr lmom:

Pa rticulaE Ar At
31-O3-2025

As At
31-0s-2024

lnterest on lncome Tax Refund

Misccllcncous lncome

Amourit ln (L.ca) Amourt ln (L.csl

0.02

TOTAT{: 0.@

l5 CGt of m.tlrirb consumd:

Note. - lnvGtmcnt in FD donc:3 a bank guarantec for a l@n takcn crclusivalY for thir prcjcct (which is Paniculary shown as

Prrticula r At At
314t-2025

As At
31.Gi-2m4

op!nirf, Stock

Add: Colt R.ld.d Erp.ffi
Sank Gurante Chart6
I nlcrart Expcns
Labour Charges

lnsurancc Expcnse - Projcct

Prciect E,e.ns
lntcrest lncome

Mi*allanaous lncomr
La$:

Le$ : C16ing Stck

Amount ln (Lr€i) Amourt ln (Licsl

3.79

56.01

227.97

0.06

3.65

3.70

0.m

3.73

45.42

781,72

0.05

287.74 227.54

zal.7a 227.v

thcretorc, intercst incomc on FD is dedsctcd frcm Work in Progr6s.

TOTALT:



17 Chango. in lnwntories:

18 Fin.m. Cortr

P.rticulrI A5 At
31.(B-2(n5

At At
31-(B-2@a

Bank Charpes

Amunt ln lLr6l Amount ln (Lr6l

0.02 0.16

TOTAL(: 0.02 0.15

19 Othrr ExprE!:

P.rticul.6 A.At
31.(B-2(n5

Ar At
31-@-2024

Lctal & Profcssional Expansd

AdministEtiva CharScs

AdvertismEnt Expcnes
Mi*cllanous Expens
Statutory Audit Expenss
Sundrv Balanccs Woff

Amum ln (1.c.) Amount ln (l,.cr)

0.63
i1.09

0.04

0.25

0.35

TOTALT: 5.37 1.02

0.00

0.02

0.25

0.75

20 E.mingPfSh.r.:

Eaming pcr sharc is calculat.d by dividing the Profit/(L6s) attributabl. to the Equity Sharcholdc6 by thc wcightcd av.rate number of Equity ShaB outst.ndinS

during thc ycar. The numbcB u*d in calculating basic and diltncd caming par EquitY share as natcd bdtr,

Pa rticuLR As At
31.8-2@5

A. At
31-@-2q24

Profit / (Loss) aftertaetion
Nct Profit / (165) attributablc to Equity Sharcholdca

Arcunt ln (uctl Arcunt ln (Lr6l

(s.37) (0.43)

(s.37) (0.43)

Particul.R AE At
3r.-(&2(D5

As At
3r..(8-2024

work-ln-Protres

At the b€Sinnint of the Frr:
Work-l n-Progress

(l mreu|/Docrees in lnf, ntoria3

Work-ln-Progress

Amunt ln (Ll6l Arcunt ln (Lr6)

3.618.83 3.331.05

3,518.83 3,331.05

3,331.05 3,102.75

3.331.05 3,102.76

{287.78) (228.2e)

TOTAL< | 128t,78], l22a.zel

ParticulaE Ar At
3l-G-2(}25

A3 At
31-O:!.2024

Basic Earning Per Sharc

Oiluted Eaming Pcr Sharc

Nomlnal Velue Pcr Share

Amum ln (Lac!) Amunt ln (Lrcs)

(s3.7s)

(s3.75)

Rs.10.00

(4.28)

(4.28)

Rs. 10.00

.)
o

+



21 FinrEi.l lnltrumnt..nd Rkk R.vi.wr
c.pit.l M.nrScm.nt

1) The company's objective when managing capital is to:

Di*bruu
This section giv6 an orcruiaw of the rignificance of financial instruments for the Company and prryid6 addilional intomation on balance sheet itams ihat contain

flnancial instruments.

The dctails of significant accounting polici6, including the criteria for rtrognition, thc basis of measuram.nt and the basis on which incomc and erpcnres are

recognizcd in rcspect of cach class of finrncial asst, fin.ncial liability and equity instrument .rc di$lcd in Notc provid€d hercundc. :

Crt.Sorio. of Fimmhl l$trum.rt5

2) F.irv.lr M$srmnt:
This note provid6 infomation about hil the company dctermin6 fair valu6 of various financi.l .sts.
FairValue of financial asscts and li.biliti6 that arc not maasured at fair valuc (bul fiirYaluc dislosu16 arc rcquiEd).

Management consideE that thc canyint amounts offinancial asscts and financial li.biliti6 r6ognizcd in thefinancial statamcnts approximatc their fairvalue.

3) Fin.mi.l Risk Mtmglmnt Obi.ctiE
While cnsuring liquidity is sufficient to mEt Comprny's operational rcquirements, lhc Company's finan(ial manatement committcc al9 monitors and manages key

financial risks rclatint to the oparations of the Company by analyzing exposura by degr€ and matnitude of risks. Th* risks includc markct risk (includint curencY

risk and price risk), cr.dit risk and liquiditY risk.

Mrrkrt tirl
Markct risk is the ri3k that thc fair valuc of futurc cash flrys of a financial instrument will fluctu.tc becaus of changs in market pric6. Ma.k€t risl @mPris two

types of risk: inlcrest rate, currcncy risk and othcr price risk, such as commodity price risk and equity pricc risk. Financial instrumants affectcd bY market risl includc

FVTPL inv6tmcnts, trada PaYabl6, radc reeivablG, etc.

Lhuiditv Ritk
The Company manatcs liquidiry risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents including bank dcPosits and availability of funding through an adcqu.te

amount of committed c.cdit faciliti6 to m€lt tha obligation3 whcn duc.

P.rticuL6 Ar rt
315t M.rch,2025

A5 rt
31n M.rch,2024

Finrmir I Asetr
M..!urd il Am]tixd co*
1) Tradc Rseivables

2) cash & Cash Equivalents

3) Loans

4) other Financial Assts
5) lnv6tments

Fimmirl Lirbilihr
M.lrurd rt Amorti$d Coat

1) Borrowings

2) Trade Payablcs

3) other Financial Liabilittes

1.00

918.22

3,111.21

1.06

528.14

3,105.56

TotrlLes than 1 Ys.r Mor. than 1 Ye.t TotalP.rticul.6

gta.22

3,111.21

+(n9.43

52E.14

3,105.55

9ts.22

3,111.21

a,@9.il:l

628.14

3,105.55

97A.22

3,111.21

+(n9.43

528.14

3,105.56

Total

Ar rt 3ltt Mtrch 2@5

BorrowinSs

Trade Payables

other Financial Liabilities

A.ft 3l* Mtrh 2@a
gorrowings

Trade Payabl6
other Financial Liabiliri.s

3,733.70 3,733.703,733.70Tot.l



;

Tnd. R.c.iwbhr
The Company dcs not havc any trade rtreivables duringthe financial year end.d 31-Mar-2025 and 31-Mar-2024.

P.ni.ul.rs Les th.n 1 Y..r Mor. th.n 1 Y.ar Totrl Total
A3 rt 3ttt Mrrch 2025

1)Trade R<eivables

2) cash & cash Equivalents

3) Loans

4) Other Financial Assls

1.48 1.48 1.48

Tot.l 1.48 1.48 1..48

Ar .t 31* M.Eh 2o:lil

1) Trade Rseivables
2) Cash & Cash Equivalents

3) Loans

4) Other Financial Assets

1.06 1.06 1.06

Tot.l 1,05 l.()6 1.06

22 R.En[:
Roenue should be reognizcd ovcr a period of time in accordanca with thc requiremants of lnd AS 115, Revenue frcm Contracts with CustomcE, Duc to the naturc

of thc business, the entity shall use thc pcrcentage of completion method in accountint for its contracts.

ln ca* of thc entity, €ntity has assesed thc rsoverability and carrying yaluc of ils prcject as at year end using external inform.tion up to the datc of financial

statements. However, the company has neithcr entercd in any contract for rlc of such assct nor rscived any advance b@kin8 payments against inventory till thc
Salance sh€t date . And ba*d on current indicatoE offuture situation, cnlity has not .dordcd any rcvenue for such period,

23 lmrtotlG:
ln Accordancc with thc lnd AS 2, lnvantsic, lnvcntorias sh.ll bc mcasurad at thc lilcr of cost and n€t realirble valuc. Thc c6t of such projc{t as on 31n March,

2025 is Rs. 36,18,83,135/-.

Asssmcnt of na rcalisble valuc of such prcjcct is m.de by th. Extemal Valuer, Mi Vinil Shah (Rcgistcrcd valuer undcr thc comapni6 Act,2013) and yaluation

report of him dat.d 27th March, 2025 h.s a!s6*d th.t prcject Is compbtcd up to of thc total valuc of such prcict and valu. of such complcicd prcjct is as

follows:
valuc of complctcd Propcny

Estlmat.d Markct valuc of thc Propcrty. &. 1,14,32,11,m0/-

Estlm.tcd Rcalifblc Valuc of th. Prop.rty. Rs. 1,02,8819800/-
Estim.ted Distrsvalucof thcPrcp.rty. Rs.&,OZAl;l@l-

ln thc Valuation rcport, it is dyen that, Construction of 8us stand portion is alm6t complctd and thc Construction work of Quartc6 and workshops is yet lo bc

$aned.
By consideringthc valuation repon of such projcct, NRV is hith.rthan th. c6t and hcnce, entity has measurcd its prcicct at c6t.

24 Th€ belance confirmation from thc supplicB, customeG as well as to various lGns or advancs tircn have been alled for, but thc smc are awaited till thc datc of
audit, Thus, the balancer of receivablB, trade payabls as well as lqns and advanca havc bcen tatcn as par the b@ks of accounts submitted by thc company and

arc subjGt to confirmation trcm the Gp€tirc parti6.

25 Previous ycar's fiture havc been reSrouped and rcarranged wherever necessary.

26 Rtht.d Prrty Di*loruE:

As pe. IND AS 24, the discl6ur6 of tnnectioB with the .elated parties arc given below:

1) Ust of Reletcd parti6 whcrc control exists and rclated partics with whom transctions havc takan placc and rclation3hiPg:

I

2) Transctions duringthc ycar with rclated partic:

Sr. I'lo. I'ltm ofth. t.Lt.d P.rty Natura of Transctionj
A5 At

31-G).2025

Ar At
31.G}.2024

i) Nila lnfrastrudu16 Limited

Unsecured Loan (Balance) 918.22 627.a7

Un*curcd Loan RcpaymentS 5.87

Unsrcurcd Loan Availed 240.27 47.O7

lnterest Expenses 55.01 43.55

2, S{mnt R.potting:
Thc Company dcs not havc any businBs scgmcnt or taographic.l $gmcnt othcr than thc onc i.c. To act as a SFr' (Spccial Purposc Vchiclc) for GSRTC work in

Amreli,Guiarat.Thercforc,th.lNDAS 108'scgmentRcportinS'isnotapplicable.

28 corportt. sochl R6poBibilit$
Thc p@isions of corporate Scial R6ponsibilitY is not aPplicable to thc company.

R€l.tion!
Ar



29 There is no pl@edingr has bcen initiated or pendint against the compeny for holding any bcnami propcrty undcr thc Ecnami Tran*ctions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

(45 of 198E) and ru16 madc thcrcunder.

30 ln casc of thc antity, entity h.s ass6$d thc Eryerability and carrying value of its prcjEt as at year end using cxternal information up to the datc of financial

statements. However, the company has ncither entered in any contr.ct for sle of such assct nor receivd any advan@ booking payments against inventory till the

Balance shet date . And ba$d on current indicatoE ofruture situation, cntity has not rEordcd any rcvenuc for such pcriod-

There is no prccecdings has bccn initiated or pcndint atainsl lhc company for holdinS any benami propcrty undcr thc Bcnami Tran$ctions (Prchibition) Act, 1988

(45 of 1988) and ruls madc thcrcund.r.

32 wilfulDsfruhGt
Tha Company has not becn dclared witful dafauhcr by any bank or financial institutions or othcr lcnder,

33 Tr.Ectlonr with Strek off comprniee
As statcd & Confimed by thc Board of DircctoB Jhe Company has not undcr taken any tranections nor has outstandint balancc with thc company Struck off
aithcr undar scction 248 of tha Act or undcr Settion 560 of Companie act 1956,

34 s.tid.stbn of chrrgdcn.rbn of ch.r8t
There is no chargG or satisfaction yet to bc retistcred with Roc beyond the statutorY period.

35 Urdi8loxd Tr.n{ctbE
As statcd & confirmed by thc Board of Oirccto6, The Company dc not havc any such tranection which is not cordd in thc b@ks of accounls that has been

surendercd or di{l6ed as incomc duringthc ycar in the tax asssments underthe ln@mc Tax Act, 1961 (such as, Earch or suryey or any other relryant provisions

of the lncome Tax Act, 1961.

36 lorn or lnf,dmnt to Uhlmia San f'rci.ri.r
As stated & confirm.d by the Board of Diredo6, The Company has not advanced or loan or inv.stcd funds to any other pcron(s) or entity(i6), including foreitn

entiti6 (lntcrmediarics) with thc undcBtandingthat thc lntcrmcdi.ry shall:

{a) dircctly or indircctly l.nd or inEst in other peBons or entiti6 idcmificd in any manncr whatcv.r by or on bchalf of the Comp.nY (Uhimatc Bcncficiari6) or
(b) providc any guarantc, sturity or the like to or on bchalf of th. Uhimate Beneficiad6

37 Lorn or lnEstmnt frcB Uhimt. B.n fici.ril
As stated & Confirmed by the So.rd of Dirtrto6, The Company hes not rtreiyed any funds to any othcr person(s) or entitY(i6), including forcign antitiG
(lntermediari.s) with the undeBlandintthat the lntermediary shall:

(a) directly or indiredly lcnd or in6t in other pecons o. entiti6 identified in any manncr whatcver by o. on behalf of the ComP.ny (Uhimate Beneficiario) or

(b) p@idc any tuarante, seurity or the like to or on behalf of the Uhimate Eeneficiari6

38 Utiliation of T.rm lo.ns
Thc Company has not applicd forthc tcrm loan durinSthe year,

39 Crypto CumEy
Thc Comp.ny has not tEded or invBted in Crypto currcncy or vinual currcncy durint thc finencial yaar

Nots referrcd to hcrcin aborc fom an integral part of the Financial statcmcnts

For Piyurh,l. Sheh & Co.

Ch.rt€r.d Accounl.nts

For & On Behilf of B@rd Ol DindoE of
NiL T.rmin.b {Amrli) Priv.t. Limit.d

FRN:

s.

Phcc r Ahmrdebad
O.tr lltt Mry,2025

f)uw
Dc{p 5. Vrdodrrh
Diroctor

uN - m284293P.rtmr
M,I\b,165(13
UDlNr 25155(13BMGXI53128 +

lEmrh D. P.t.l
Dircdot
DtN - 07773496



E'
0)2
E

J

o
6

o-

.14
o
.g
E
OJ

F
o
z

't
o)
!
o
o
o

oE

o

.9
t!

J
G
E
oE

o
-oo
.9

oz

x6(!
mo
.cI
T'
o)

o
q)

o

.9

v,
fg
o

a6

I
@

dt

0,

6
q)

.i
-oo

o
l)
o

=CLa

z

.9
E
o

a
E
o)

G:o
o
U
06

bQ{
4q
o

l)
1'
o
oo

o6EM
odi'- ol
6

L>
'L lIq,E
.!o<3
.:o
ioo-E

o
!o
.9
E.o

oz

-9-oo
.9
o
CL

oz

o
!o
.9
o

I
z

q,

3
o
.o

o-

z

q,

-oo
.9E
o.

oz

.9
Eo

E.
E
@

G
E
CL
G
U
od

;Rt+
U.!

$
6

-o
!o
Go.
E$

EM
od;'- o)
5dL>
OE
EO<3
P.O
ioo-t

o\

s
o
n0c
o
E
L)

N
I
N

q
N
N(n

rn
F\
@

.!
ro(o

o.!

<f
N
o

6

d
oo

CJ
o
o

oq
o

o
c,

6

C;

o)q
o

co
n
m
I
ao

O)q
o

tJ)
N
G

(o
(o
d

oco
oq
o

oq
o

oco
oq
o

@qoq
F.

.+
Ols

oo
.j

o
o

.E

oc
oo>
o
g
|l,

E
fz

'o
o

Pro
tl aYl trdl .i
!l-ol ozl 2a

6
U

b
EI B
9l sel =-l F
:IE

F

E
El *
6l ucl E
fl .:
Fl t
EI;Fl 6z

o
ll
6

it{
El s5l oFl 3
ol <xl o
EI H

o

o

=o
,, 9{

:li
EI Efl =Fl o
-lu6lI
EI:

g
o

.g
olo
>l P_

EI T5l c

"l 
g"

6t sFl o

El _

EIEtl ]
.rt o
blz
o-l

gl
>l
ol
vlc
-ol o
€l E

EIT
ol c
!l+ol ;
6l E>l oGle
odE
EI
Elst

,31

ol Ol

6l E
6l={l*
cl !
olc

=l 
s.l E

osl

g
q

t
G
o-

!o
_9
CL

E
o
f
.v_
o.
o
U
c

o
d.

.9
a
d,
2.
o
o-

oz
=

.9
o

o

=
G2
o(J
oz

.9
o

o

tr

o
-o
6
G
EL
o
6

,9
o

-g.cI
o
o
q,

'a
o
d.

o
o

o

0,

o

.9
o

.=
(,
0,
c
o
c

q,
d

E

,F
GE
o
o0
o
o
o
U
o

E
q,
t^
I
0)o

.9
o
c.

E
l
Eu

!oo
-o

.9
E
d.
c
o
:
U
G

c
o

=c

o
E
IU

o
6

-51.iol f
ol ,g



CK
INDIA

Piyush J, Sha h & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Piyush J. Shah
B.Com, FCA, D.l.S.A.(ICA)

A. SCOPE OF WORK

l. General lnformation

M B D & CO LLP (Ahmedabad, lndia) has been appointed auditors of NILA INFRASTRUCTURES
LIMITED (the "Group') for the financial year 2A2425 for conducting audit of consolidated financial
statements and review of quarterly consolidated financial results prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in lndia (lndian GAAP). NILA INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED together
with its subsidiary, joint ventures and associate constitutes the Nila lnfrastructures Group (the'Group").
The subsidiary, joint ventures and associate of NILA INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED are referred to as
components. Your office has been requested by us to assist in the capacity of component auditor by
conducting procedures in accordance with these referral instructions to support the Group's financial
statements / results ("Combined audit") group audit / review opinion. As such, your work does not
constitute a separate audit engagement between you (the "component auditor') and us (the "group
engagement team").

These Group Audit lnstructions are designed to inform you about the scope of work we require you to
perform for the purpose of the Group audit. The instructions outline, among other areas, the key

reporting deadlines, audit deliverables to be submitted to the group auditor and communication
guidelines.

It is essential that all component auditors follow the requirements as set out in these group referral
instructions so that adequate information is received by the group engagement team. Component
auditors are responsible for instructing their respective teams and monitoring their progress such that
all requests in these referral instructions are completed, applicable professional standards are followed,
and the reporting timelines detailed within these referral instructions are adhered to.

Templates forthe reporting deliverables are included in Section B of these instructions.

Compliance with the instructions by the auditors of the Group companies will assist us in forming an

opinion on the consolidated financial statements of Nila lnfrastructures Group. lt is therefore important

to us that the recipients of these instructions make themselves familiar with them and confirm their intent

to cooperate with us. Please send your acknowledgement of receipt of these Group Audit
lnstructions and your lndependence as soon as possible.

As auditors of the Group, we may require access to your audit files and working papers. To the extent

that you are requested to perform work on the financial information of a Group company that is
significant to the Group, we are also required to discuss certain matters with you and review the

documentation of your audit work Audit standards further require us, as the Group auditor, to

sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the work of the auditors of the Group companies are

for our purposes. Where we intend to review your audit files and worklng papers, we
you in advance and agree on the timing and the type of access.

Reg. Office : 404-504, Shikhar Building, Nr. Vadilal house, Netaji Marg, Mithakhali Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009

Ph.: (O) +91 - 07940801 1 21, 40801 1 55, 66550333, 66550334, 9825027370
Email : pjshahca@rediffmail.com; piyush@pjshahca.com Website : www.pjshahca.com

Branch Office : 8-503, I Square, Nanamava Circle, Nr. Marvadi Broker, Rajnagar Main Road, Rajkot360003.

Mobile No.: (M) 8758801260, (M) 6353042447 Emall ld : devang@pjshahca.com;jay@pjshahca.com

Your Growth Partner..........



Nila lnfrastructures Group Audit lnstructions - Scope of Work

II. AUDIT STRATEGY

Reporting GAAP

The group reporting instructions require components to submit a set of financial statements prepared in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework in lndia and or the group accounting policies.

lf the financial statements are prepared as per any GAAP other than lndian GAAP (lnd AS), the Component
Management is also responsible for determining the adjustments required to convert these financial
statements to lndian GAAP (lnd AS) and for the preparation of the "Summary of Adjustments", which needs
to be appended to the financial statements and the same should be reviewed by you.

Details of the group's significant accounting policies are set out in ("Appendix Gl")

The financial statements are required to be completed in your reporting currency.

GASS

Your procedures should be completed in accordance with lnternational Standards of Auditing as per the
scope for your engagement described as mentioned below

An Audit of the component's financial information engagement should be performed using the materiality
levels subject to maximum materiality as per following formula.

Please note that component auditor can consider materiality lower than materiality mentioned as above.

The procedures required to conduct a review of the financial information of the component should be
determined by you with regard to the requirements of the lnternational Standards on Auditing

Procedures ordinarily performed during an audit includes audit skills and techniques and the gathering of
evidence, involve an assessment of accounting and internal control systems, tests of records, and
responses to inquiries by obtaining corroborating evidence through inspection, observation, confirmation,
and computation.

lf performing an Engagement, use the "Component Auditor Clearance: Audit of the Component's Financial
lnformation - Opinion Clearance Memorandum" found in Appendix D1

s

+

I

2

(A) Profit / (Loss) before tax from Continuinq Operation Rs.(5,37,456)

(B) Overall Materiality Rs.(26,872.81)

(c) Performance Materiality Rs.(13,436.40)

(D) De Minimis SUM Posting Level Rs.(1343.64)

rNglA

+

J



Nila lnfrastructures Group Audit lnstructions - Scope of Work

Reporting under Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 (CARO)

Where a component is required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (as amended by
Companies Amendment Act, 2017) in addition to the audit of the component's reporting package / financial
statements / lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, as indicated above, the component audit
team is required to report (clause-wise) any qualifications or adverse remarks in CARO, in order to enable
us to report on Clause (xxi) of CARO 2020.

Component Auditor is required to provide the clause wise details of any qualification or adverse remarks in
CARO in appendix D8.

Reporting as per revised Schedule ll! format - Financial statement and Auditors' Report on Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors Rules) 2014

The Companies Act (and the Rules) has recently amended the disclosure requirements on the financial
statements by the company as also the reporting requirements by the statutory auditor. Pursuant to these
amendments there are enhanced disclosure requirements which will need to be audited by the component
auditors.

Where a component is required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (as amended by
Companies Amendment Act, 2017), component auditor is required to ensure that financial statement for the
year ending March 31,2025 is prepared as per requirements of revised schedule lll.

lll. RepresentationLetter

Each auditor should obtain a representation letter from the local management. This document contains the

key representations made by the local management regarding the accuracy and completeness of the

financial statements and the reporting package, the quantification of related party transactions and the

existence of contingent liabilities. This letter should be dated as near as practicable to, but not after, the

date of the audit reporUgroup audit conclusion on the local financial information.

lV. Timetable of Communications

The following table shows the due dates for the Group reporting

Reference Due DatesDescription of Communication

B-l upon receipt of
instructions, latest 02

April2025

Acknowledgement of Group Audit lnstructions

and Confirmation of lndependence

B-il / B-ilt immediately, if
applicable, and latest

07 April2025

Early Warning Memorandum / Format

15 April 2025Signed Financial Statements and Audit Report

D-1 15 April 2025Group Audit Conclusion

15 April 2025o-2Summary of Audit Differences

D-3 15 April 2025Summary Review Memorandum (SRM)

-3-



Nila lnfrastructures Group Audit lnstructions - Scope of Work

Subsequent Events Review D-4 15 April2025

Management Letter '15 April 2025

Analysis of Result D-6 15 April2025

Scope of Work to be performed by component
Auditors

D-7 15 April 2025

Clause wise qualifications / adverse remarks
(if any) in Companies (Auditors' Report) Order,
2020

D-8 15 April 2025

-4-

Descri ption of Communication Reference Due Dates



Nila lnfrastructures Group Audit lnstructions - Scope of Work

V. Group Audit Team Contacts

Please send all communications to Deval Desai and Kunal Vyas. For any questions regarding the group
audit do not hesitate to contact us.

Mr. Deval Desai Engagement
Partner

+91 9429303524 deval.desai@mbdandco. com

Mr. Kunal Vyas Engagement
Manager

+91 846062492s kunal.vyas@mbdandco. com

-5-

Name Level Phone No. EmailAddress



Nila lnfrastructures Audit lnstructions - Reporting 2024-25

B. REPORTING

l. Acknowledgement of Group Audit lnstructions and Confirmation of lndependence

I acknowledge receipt of your Group Audit lnstructions and related Appendices for the Group Audit work to
be performed on the Location(s) listed below for which I am responsible.

Name of Local Entity:

Key Members of LocalTeam

Role Name Phone Email

Engagement
Partner

CA Arvind S V'rjayvargiya +91 99799 22909 arvind@pjshahca.com

(Senior) Manager Krina Rajgor +91 81419 58733 articles@pishahca.com

lnitials

I acknowledge that I have read the Group Audit lnstructions. ',/

I confirm that I am the partner responsible for the work to be performed in relation to the
location(s) listed above.

{

I confirm that I understand the audit scope for the location(s) for which I am responsible
and that we have the necessary knowledge and expertise to comply with these instructions.

./

I confirm that I have read the due dates set out in the Section A.V and that I do not expect
any problems in complying with your reporting deadlines.

{

I confirm that all members of my audit engagement team have confirmed to me that they
and their immediate famity members have no financial interests in the client. I also confirm
that I have no such interests. ln addition, based on my inquiries, I confirm that no entity
within my country that is not independent is providing bookkeeping, data processing,
payroll, or similar services that have not been reported to you.

{

+

+
ttrFPartner's Signature:

Partner's Name: CA S. Vijayva

Date: 1sMay,2025

Office: Ahmedabad

6



Nila lnfrastructures Audit lnstructions - Reporting 2024-25

Early Warning Memorandum (EWM)

We require an Early Warning Memorandum (EWM) to be able to identify, on a timely basis, any significant
audit issues that may need to be discussed with the local client and Group headquarter. The following
matters are to be addressed in the EWM. These matters should to be addressed immediately when they
are identified.

o Auditing and accounting issues that have been identified, including apparent accounting policy
changes and potential year-end exposures

. Reporting timetable problems

. Significantinternalcontrol/processdeviationsorissues

o Unusual transactions/events of material amounts

. Materialrelated-partytransactions

o lssues that require judgment in the determination of accounting treatment or valuation

. Proposed adjustments that may have a significant effect on the location's financial information

. The possibility that questionable or illegal acts, including questionable payments, may have occurred

o Potential report modifications

o Fraud

The required format of the EWM is provided below and all local teams use

-7 -



Nila lnfrastructures Audit lnstructions - Reporting 2024-25

Il. Early Warning Memorandum (EWM) Format

Name of local

Reporting Currency:

Year

lssue Action Required Date

Accounting & Audit lssues
(Describe the nature of the issue and the
potential effect on the reporting package)

Significant lnternal Control/Process
lssues

Unusual Transactions/Events

Other (Titte text)

Discussed with Management I Yes o No

Management Gomments (if any)

-8-



Nila lnfrastructures Audit lnstructions - Reporting 2024-25

lll. Group Audit Conclusion

As per 'Annexure D1' Component Auditor Clearance Memorandum

U. Summary of Audit Differences

The SAD template'Annexure D2' is a required template and should be used to accumulate and summarize
audit differences on all audit engagements. The SAD template is attached to this audit instructions as an
Excelfile.

Report all audit differences to local management as they arise. Encourage management to record all
proposed adjustments arising from your procedures.

All audit differences over the NominalAmount communicated by the Group Audit Team, are to be included
in the SAD. Provide adequate explanation of the nature of each audit difference in the Summary Review
Memorandum and note whether it has been discussed and cleared with local management.

-9-



Nila lnfrastructures Audit lnstructions - Reporting 2024-25

V. Summary Review Memorandum (SRM)

A Summary Review Memorandum (SRM) for your location that summarizes important audit results and
conclusions, highlighting major issues from your audit work is to be provided in accordance with the
timetable at Section A.V. Your SRM should be written in a manner that fully explains the facts of the issues,
amounts involved, and conclusions reached. As all of these issues will be discussed with headquarter
management, it is important that all such matters be discussed with local management and their
concurrence (or otherwise) noted in the SRM.

Each SRM for an individual location must at least include

o A short overall financial statement analytical review and related findings, if any.

o A brief discussion of each important accounting and auditing issue.

. An analysis of the tax situation and details of deferred taxes (refer to Vl. below)

o A description of significant accounting differences between local GAAP and lndian GAAP, if any
and you are aware of them

. Local materiality used and a summary of unrecorded audit differences together with an adequate
explanation.

. Documentation of fraud procedures, including fraud risks identified, procedures to respond to those
risks, and the results of the related procedures.

-10-
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Vl. Subsequent Events Review

Perform a subsequent events review from the date of your Group Audit Conclusion to April 15, 2025 and
report to us using the format provided below. (D4 - Subsequent Events Review)

Subsequent Events Review

Name of Local Entity:
Reporting Gurrency:
Year End:

We have performed, to the date of this memorandum, subsequent events procedures and other audit
procedures covering transactions, operations and corporate minutes from the date of our Group Audit
Conclusion until 24th April,2025.

ln the course of performing those procedures, no material subsequent events or transactions have come to
our attention or adjustments have been discovered that should be considered by you in reporting on the
consolidated financial statements of Nila lnfrastructures Limited for the quarter and year ended 31 March
2025. Additionally, the conclusion expressed by us in the Group Audit Conclusion requires no change or
update as of today's date.

Partner's Signature: Date: 1't May,2025

Office: AhmedabadPartner's Name: CA Arvind S. Vijayvargiya rflD I A

- ll -



Nila lnfrastructures Group Audit lnstructions - Client lnformation

C. GLIENT INFORMATION

l. Key Accounting Policies

The accounting principles applied by Nila lnfrastructures Limited are in conformity with lndian GAAP. For
more details please refer Gl - Significant accounting policies

Also refer D7 - Scope of Work to be performed by component Auditors.

ll. Key Audit lssues

From a group point of view we have identified the following key audit issues that might be addressed by
your audit procedures and your group reporting.

Financial Statements Caption Audit Risk / Audit Objective

Revenue Recognition Cut-off Procedure

lnventories Existence and valuation of inventories

I ntercompany reconciliation Completeness and accounting accuracy to report by

counter parts

Accounts receivables - trade Valuation of accounts receivables - trade

Accruals and provisions
employee obligations

including Completeness, valuation and accounting of accruals

Adherence to four-eye-principle (in
matters e.g. price changes to customers,
adjustments in customer/supplier relation-
ship, contracts, amendments to contracts)

Separation of duties; prevent from fraud and error

lll. Related Parties

Provided below are the related parties of the Nila lnfrastructures Group. Component Audit Team should

notify the Group Audit Team immediately if they identify issues with the accuracy and completeness of this

list. Component audit teams utilize this information when confirming their independence and for their audit
purposes.

For List of Related Party, Refer'Appendix G2 - List of Related Parties'.

Kindly provide related party transactions, balances and unrealised Inter Company Profit in inventory, property,
plant and equipment and capital work in progress with component.

a

+
+
o
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a

a
E
E

MBO&CO[P Nila lnfrastructures Group Audit

Summary of Unadiusled Oifferences (SAO)

Entity Name:

Auditor:

Local Tax Rate ,i(

of the

1

3

4

6

7

Profit and Loss lmpact befole Tax

Tax

Profit and Loss lmpact afierTax

Other uncorrected misstatements (OmissionsrPresentationrOisclosure)

Balance Sheet lncome StatementTax efiect

Y'N Oebrt Credit Debit Credit

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

Reg. Ofiice : 404-504, Shikhar Building, Nr. Vadilal house, Netaji Marg, Mithakhali Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009.
Ph.: (O) +91 - 07940801 1 21, 40801 1 55, 66550333, 66550334, 9825027370

Email : pjshahca@rediffmail.com; piyush@pjshahca.com Website : www.pjshahca.com
Branch Office : 8-503, 9 Square, Nanamava Circle, Nr. Marvadi Broker, Rajnagar Main Road, Rajkot-360003.

Mobile No.: (M)8758801260, (M)6353042447 Email ld : devang@pjshahca.com;jay@pjshahca.com

Your Growth Partner..........

CA Atuind S. Vraylrargiya

26.00%

Currency

0

Summary ot Unadjusted Audlt Dlfterences and Reclassmcalion3



Nila lnfrastructures Group

Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private timitcd
Financial Results for thc Quarter ended March 31, 2025

A ASSETS

I Non-currcntassats
a) Property, plant and equipment

b) Capital work-in-progress

b) lntangible assets

c) Financial assets

i) lnvestments

ii) Other financial assets

d) Deferred tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

2 Currcntassets
a) lnventories

B EQUITY AND TIABITITIES

Equrty

a) Equity share capital

b) Other equity

Total

Liabilitics
1 Non-current llabllitics

a) Financialliabilities

i) Borrowings

ii) Other financial liabilities

b) Provisions

c) Deferred tax liabilities {net}
d Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

2 Current liabilities

a) Financialliabilities
i) Borrowings

ii) Tradepayables

iii) Other financial liabilities

b) Other current liabilities

c) Provisions

Current tax liabilities

Totel current liabilities

Total liabilities

bl Financial assets

i) Loans

i) Trade receivables

ii) Cash and cash equivalents

iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

iv) Other financial assets

c) other current assets

dl Assets classified as held

for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

5,000.00

52,35,889.00

5,m0.00
49,03,137.00 3,32,752.@

52,40,889.00 49,08,137.00 3,32,752.00

33,31,05,361.48

t,06,226.17

3,54,61,883.70

2.87 ,77,173.87

41,892.26

7,363.92

36,18,83,135.35

7.48,1t8.43

3,54,69,247.62

35,86,73,471.35 2,86,27,030.0539,75,00,501.40

2,91,59,782.O540,27,4t,390.40 37,35,81,608.35

15,37,4s6.23],

1,00,000.00
(9,1s,388.88)

1,00,000.m

.3,77,932.6s],

15,17,456.231(8,1s,388.88 12,17,932.6sl.

9,18,21,911.00

3L,L7,20,759.t8

6,14,109.00

6,28,r4,294.@

31,05,55,709.00

4,89,538.00

2,90,07,617.@

5,65,050.18

1,24,571.@

40,35,56,779.18 37,38,s9,541.00 2,96,97,238.14

37,38,59,541.00 2,96,97,238.L840,35,56,779.18 +
*

Arise due to addition in

Deposit during the year

Arise due to work done

difference Amount is of GST

Difference is of the Loss

is due to repayment of
made in current year

more advances are taken

r contractors during the

Difference arises due to TDS

the year

tTc

during the year

year

37,35,81,608.3s 2,91,59,781.9540,27,41,390.30
I

t

Total and liabilities

As at Mar 31,2025 As at Mar 31, 2024 Differencc

ffi
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Piyush J, Sha h & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CK
IND!A

Piyush J. Shah
B.Com, FCA, D.l.S.A.(tCA)

CLAUSE WrSE QUALTTTCATTONS / ADVERSE REMARKS (rr Ar{Y} rN COMPANTES
(AUDITORS', REPORT) ORDER, 2O2O.

To: Nila Termlnals (Amrelt) Private Ltmited

We conflrm that there are ro qualifications / adverse remarks in Companles (Auditors'
Report) Order, 2O2O (CARO) for the year ended March 3L, 2ol25 in respect of Nila
Termlnals (Amreli) Private Llmlted, havtng CIN U453G)GJ2O17PTCO968O1 except:

For, shJShah&Co.
Firm No.:

Arvind S

Partner
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 1st May,2025

rxD

Your Growth Partner..........

Ph.:

No.:

404-504Office Shikhar Nr. VadilalReg. Building, house, MithakhaliNetaji CrossMarg, Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009.
+9 07940801 21(o) 40801 1 55, 66550333, 982502737066s50334,

Email pjshahca@rediffmail.com 
; piyush@pjshahca.com Website www.pjshahca.com

OfficeBranch IB-503, NanamavaSquare, N MarvadiCircle, Broker MainRajnagar Road, Rajkot-360003.
Mobile 8758801 260,(M) 6353042447(M) tdEmail devang@pjshahca.com; jay@pjshahca.com

Sr. No Clause No Descrlption of
clause

Detail description of
Qualilication / Adverse
Remark

NA NA NA NA



COMPONENT AUDITOR CLEARANCE MEMORANDUM

COMPONENT AUDITOR CLEARANCE MEMORANDUM - AUDIT OF THE COMPONENT'S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR GROUP AUDIT PURPOSES

The following example is appropriate when the component auditor performs an audit of a
component's financial information.

From: Piyush J Shah & Co.

Date: lst May,2025

To: M B D & CO LLP (FRN: 135129w/w100152)

In accordance with your instructions dated 14th April, 2025, we have audited for
purposes of your audit of the consolidated financial statements of Nila
Infrastructure Limited (the "Group") the [financial information included in the
[describe reporting package] (the "financial information') of Nila Termlnals (Amreli)
Private Limited for the year[s] ended 2024-2025. This financial information has
been prepared solely to enable the Group to prepare its consolidated financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial
information on the basis of Nila Infrastructure Limited group's accounting policies,
and for such internal control as m€rnagement determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the fi.nancial information that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error..

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial information using
Standards on Auditing and in accordance with your instructions. As requested by
you, we planned and performed our audit using the component materiality and
component performance materiality specified in your instructions, which may be
different than the materiality and performance materiality that we would have used
had we been designing the audit to express an opinion on the hnancial information of
the component alone.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The conclusions reached in forming our opinion are
based on the component materiality and component performance materiality
specified by you in the context of the audit of the consolidated hnancial statements of
the Group. We have complied with [fnsef desutption of ethical reqtirements that are
releuont to the group audit, induding independence and professional ampetencel as it
relates to our independence and professional competence



Clearance Memorandum Example Templates (5-18)

Open Items

lln"sert a desciption of any open items, e.g.: We have not received confirmation replies
relating to trade receivables of $[insed amountl and have not yet satisfied ourselves
concerning these accounts by other means. We expect to complete our work
concerning these accounts by linseri datel, and will advise you of the status at that
time.l

Opinlon

In our opinion, the financial information for Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private
Limited as of 31't March 2O2S and for the year then ended has been prepared, in all
material respects, on the basis of Nila Infrastructure Limited Group's accounting
policies.

Restriction on Use and Distribution

This financial information has been prepared for purposes of providing information to
the Group to enable it to prepare its consolidated financial statements. As a result,
the financial information is not a complete set of financial statements of Nila
Terminals (Amrelil Hvate Limited in accordance with Nila Infrastructure
Limited Group's accounting policies and is not intended to give a true and fair view
of the financial position of Nila Terminals (Amreli) Private Limited as on 31't
March 20125, and of its financial performance, and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Nila Infrastructure Limited Group's accounting policies.
The hnancial information may, therefore, not be suitable for another purpose.

This report is intended solely for lname of group engagement teaml and should not be
used by, or distributed to, anyone in the Group, any of its components, or any other
third party.

For, Piyush J. Shah & Co.
Firm No. t72W

Arvind S.
Partner
Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 1st May,2025

2



Clearance Memorandum Example Templates (5-18)

Note 1: Specified Audit Procedures Requested in Addition to an Audit of the
Component's Financid Information or an Audit of One or More Account Balances of
the Component

If the group engagement team has also requested the component auditor to perform
specified audit procedures in addition to an audit of the component's financial information
or an audit of one of more account balances of the component, insert the following sentence
immediately preceding the last sentence in the first paragraph:

We have also performed additional procedures in accordance with your instructions,
and our findings are included in [desuibe where included, e.9., Appendix X].

Replace the first paragraph under "Auditor's Responsibilit/ with the following paragraph:

Our responsibility is to express €ur opinion on the financiai information using
lspectfg auditing standardsl and in accordance with your instructions. As requested
by you, we planned and performed our audit, including the additional procedures, in
accordance with your instructions, using the component materiality and component
performance materiality linsert either [specified in your instructions] or [as agreed to
by you]], which is different than the materiality and performance materiality that we
would have used had we been designing the audit to express an opinion on the
financial information of the component alone.

I{ote 2: Scope Limitations

Pervasive uopen items" may result in the need for a scope limitation; in such circumstances,
the Engagement Partner is encouraged to consult with the appropriate resource (e.9., a
national office consultation resource) to reach a conclusion on the appropriateness of the
scope limitation.

If there is a limitation on the scope of the component auditor's work that requires the
expression of a qualffied opinion, insert before the opinion paragraph the following heading
and paragraph:

Basis for Qualilied Opinion

llnclude a paragraph describing tte circumstances that led to ttrc amponent auditor being
unable to obtain sufficient appropiate audit euidence, for example a management imposed
limitation (e.9., management preuents us from obseruing inuentory, and ue are unable to
perform other procedures) or a circumstance imposed limitation (e.9., tlw timing of our
appointment as auditor does not allow for us to obserue inuentory, and we are unable to
p erform other pro cedure s ).1

Replace the paragraph under "Auditor's Responsibitt/ that begins "We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufhcient..." with the paragraph that follows, if the scope
limitation is material and pervasive and would result in a disclaimer of opinion.
Consultation with an appropriate resource (e.9., a national office consultation resource) to
reach a conclusion on the appropriateness of a disclaimer of opinion may be appropriate in
these circumstances.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufhcient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our qualified audit opinion. The conclusions reached in forming our qualified
opinion are based on the component materiality level specified by you in the context of the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group

3
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Clearance Memorandum Example Templates (5-18)

Replace the title "Opinion" with "Qualified Opinion" and replace the "Opinion" paragraph
with the following:

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the "Basis for
Qualified Opinion" paragraph, the financial information for lname of amponentl as of linsert
datel and for the year then ended [has/have] been prepared, in all material respects, on the
basis of linsert a desciption of tle acounting pinciples used, e.9., IFRS or accounting
principles generally accepted in [insed group's ountryll and in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies.

Note 3: Other Matter Paragraph

If we wish to draw the group engagement team's attention to any matters that are relevant
to their understanding of the procedures we performed, an "Other Matte/ paragraph may
be added above the "Restriction on Use and Distribution' paragraph under an appropriate
heading.

Note 4: Material Misstatement of the Financial Information

It may also be necessary to qualify the opinion if a material misstatement of the financial
information has been identified.

Note 5: Additional Auditor Responsibility Slordlng

When reporting outside of the network, the group auditor may request that additional
language be included in the report regarding the auditor's responsibilities. In such cases,
the following paragraph may be inserted as the second nAuditor's Responsibility' paragraph
in the report:

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial information. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
information, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the special purpose
financial information in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
m€rnagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial information.

4



Nila lnfrastructures Group

[Name of Component Entityl
Limited revlew procedures

Sr.
No.

Procedure Remarks

Current Ratio:
The Company's Current
Ratio is O.98 Which
indicates that company is
having very good current
asset ratio, which describes
the working capital strength
of company

Quick Ratio:
The Company's Quick Ratio
is O.O9 which indicates that
there are not enough
current assets to cover the
payments that are due on
the company's current
liabilities

Debt Equity ratio:
The Company's Debt Equity
Ratio is Negative
Which indicates that
company does not have
adequate Fund to Pay Non -
Current Liabilities

1 Perform analytical procedures on the hnancial
information and key financial ratios of the Company
- including information for corresponding period.
(include a commenta-ry on the balances and the
variances based on procedure performed)

S

2 Review the minutes of the meeting of Board of
directors (its committees) and Shareholders, provide
a commentary on material matters affecting the
Iinancial position of the company.

There is no such material
matters that affect the
financial position of the
company

Not Applicable3 Review new agreements entered by the company
and provide a commentary if any potential impact
on the financia-l position of the company.

Not Applicable4 Review and comment on following specific matters
- Changes in significant accounting policy.
- Planned acquisition or expected discontinuance

of operation.
- Any disputes, notice, Order, Appeal, tegal Suit,

potential litigation, and other contingencies.
- Significant new contract, investment or

divestment.
- Strike, lockouts or other labour / employee

disputes.
- Significant new product line / service proposed

or introduced.
- Assessment of the appropriateness of the Going

Concern assumption in frnancial reporting.
- Any change in accounting systems (including

automation) which could have impact on
compilation of financial information

a

D

+

,
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N ila lnfrastructures Group

Sr
No.

Procedure Remarks

Assessment of GST applicability on ongoing
projects and its effect on the project revenue and
cost estimates, and analysing how GST-related
adjustments could affect the financial
statements.

Not Applicable5 Other review procedures should include:
Note: The auditor may choose to perform additional
procedures in case ofunusual balance/ uaiances.

There is no Revenue from
operations

Revenue
Inquire the bases and sources of information used
for compilation of net sales / income and perform
appropriate compliance testing procedures and
document the results of the same. Specifically
inquire into the controls to ensure completeness of
booking and the 'cut-off" procedures which are
exercised.
Please comment on the impact if there is any
material change in the accounting policies for sales
revenue / income during the period under review.

Perform analytical review procedures in respect of
net sales/ income as reported :

- On an overall basis
- By major product lines/divisions/businesses
- By margins
- to the extent deemed necessary and relevant and

obtain/document the reasons for any abnormal
variations and ensure disclosure of the same by
way of a note, if required.

Inquire into the nature of trading activities
undertaken if any i.e. whether on principal to
principal basis or agency basis. Whilst in respect of
the former the sales and purchases would need to
be booked separately, in respect of the latter only
the commission should be recognised as income.

A

Other Income includes
Interest income from bank
accounts

J.

B Other Income
Inquire into the nature of items which are included
under "Other Income".
These would normally comprise of income arising
from :

a) Trading activities
b) Other supplementary services rendered
c) Any statutory benefits or concessions arising
on imports and/or exPorts

In case of any doubt with regard to the classilication
of the above, the treatment adopted in the holding
company should be looked into. If the amount in
resplct thereof is material, the nature of the items
should also be indicated by way of a note'

For income from services
adopted and the sources ofInquire into the basis

information used for details of income

ot

+



N ila lnfrastructures Group

Sr.
No.

Procedure Remarks

from various sources and perform appropriate
compliance testing procedures and document the
results thereof. Also, specifically inquire into the
controls to ensure completeness of booking and the
ucut-off' procedures which are exercised.
Ensure that the service revenue for the current
quarter is accounted on the same basis as in the
previous period.

Where the figures are compiled on an estimated
basis, inquire into the basis and justification thereof
and document the same.
Perform appropriate analytical review procedures in
respect of the major sources of service revenue and
obtain/document the reasons for any abnormal
variations and ensure disclosure thereof by way of a
note, if required.

Inventories are stated at the
lower of weighted average
cost or net realizable value.
Costs include a-ll non-
refundable duties and all
charges incurred in bringing
the goods to their present
location and condition, Net
realizable value represents
the estimated selling price
for inventories less all
estimated costs of
completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

ffi

C Cost of materials consurned / Inventory

Inventory
Determine the basis of determination of the closing
stock of inventory as at the period end.
- Physically verify the inventory,
- Where physical verification is not undertaken by

auditor, obtain a certified list of the closing stock
of inventory. Quantities to be test checked from
physical verification papers.

- Ensure that the basis of valuation of inventory for
the current quarter is on the same basis as in the
previous period (quarter/half-year).

- Volume rebates, discounts or other contractual
changes in the prices of raw materials should be
recognised only if it is probable that there is an
obligation or liability in respect thereof. Any
contractual rebates and discounts which are
anticipated but discretionar5r should not be
recognised.

- Where the vaiuation is done on an estimated
basis, inquire into the basis and justilication
thereof and document the same.

Perform analytical review procedures in respect of
consumption of inventory:

a) On an overall basis
b) In respect of major raw materials both in
terms of value and yield
c) By major product lines (divisions/businesses)
d) By turnover ratios both on an overall basis as
well as by major Product
lines / divisions / businesses to the extent deemed
necessaq/ and relevant and obtain/document
the reasons for any abnormal variations.

To the extent deemed necessary and relevant
and obtain/document the reasons for any
abnormal variations.



Nila lnfrastructures Group

Sr.
No.

Procedure Remarks

Inquire into the bases and sources of information
used for reporting the figure of employees cost and
ensure that the items considered are as per
classification requirements of holding company.

Ensure that salaries/wages and other allowances
which are fixed and recurring in nature as per the
terms of appointment are considered on an accrual
basis for the period under review irrespective of their
actual payment.

A provision should be recognised for all benefits
(conditional or unconditional) which an employee
becomes entitled to as a result of rendering of the
service and should be recorded as part of the cost of
senrice rendered during the period in which the
service was rendered which resulted in the
entitlement. In estimating the cost of such benefits
the probability of the employee availing such beneltt
should be considered.

In cases where certain retirement/post-retirement
benefits like gratuity, leave encashment etc. are
applicable inquire into the basis adopted for
disclosure in the quarterly results and review the
appropriateness of the same to ensure that no
material amounts are omitted.
In case of any pending labour disputes/demands for
wage revisions, review the basis and adequacy of the
provision made.

Employee benefit Not ApplicableD

There is No Depreciable
Asset in the Block of Asset.

A

E Depreciation / Fixed Assets

Inquire into the bases and the sources of
information used for reporting the depreciation
charge for the period.
Review the particulars of major additions and
deductions to fixed assets during the period and
ensure that adjustments towards interest
capitqlization and other pre-operative costs, where
material, are appropriately reflected.

Check the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations.

Ensure that the basis of
determination/computation of depreciation for the
current quarter is on the same basis as in the
previous period (quarter/half-year) of the current
financial year.

Perform analytical review procedures in respect of
depreciation:

On an overall basis

rN0l
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Nila lnfrastructures Group

Procedure RemarksSr.
No.

b) For major components thereof
to the extent deemed necessary and
obtain/document the reasons for any abnormal
variations.

F

Inquire into the bases, composition and sources of
information used for reporting the amount of other
expenditure.
Review the components thereof and ensure that any
item in excess of lOo/o of the total expenses is
disclosed separately.

Obtain and review the statement of provision for
expenses and provision for non-performing assets
for appropriateness and completeness. In cases
where certain provisions are made/ considered on
an estimated basis, review the basis and
justification thereof. Examples of such items
include waranty provisions, provision for
contingencies, provision for doubtful debts etc.

Ensure that any other material expenditure which
is extraordinary/exceptional in nature is disclosed
separately.

Expenses in the nature of maintenance, overhaul or
other seasonal expenditure which is expected to
occur later in the hnancial period should not be
provided for unless there is an event which has
caused the enterprise to have a present obligation.
Ensure that no provision is made for expenses
which are discretionary and expected to be incurred
irregularly during the financial year, even though
they may be budgeted. e.g. advertising, sales
promotion etc.

Ensure that the basis of
determination/computation of other expenditure
items for the current quarter is on the same basis
as in the previous period (quarter/half-year).

Perform anatytical review procedures in respect of
other expenditure:
a) On an overall basis
b) For major components thereof
to the extent deemed necessarJr and
obtain/document the reasons for any abnormal
variations.
Ensure that atl material extraordinary/exceptional
expenses are identified and disclosed separately.

OTHER EXPENSES:-

G FINANCE COSTS:-
Inquire into the basis, composition and sources of
information used for rePorting the finance costs for A



Nila lnfrastructures Group

Sr.
No.

Procedure Remarks

the period. Other finance costs like commission,
brokerage, bank charges etc. should also be
reported under this item.

Obtain and review the statement/working for
accrual of interest on borrowings and other finance
costs for appropriateness and completeness. In
cases where certain provisions are made/
considered on an estimated basis, review the basis
and justification thereof.

Perform appropriate analytical review procedures
including analysis of average costs and
obtain/document the reasons for any abnormal
variations.

6 The following indicative procedures may be
performed in addition to those specified elsewhere
for reviewing the Statement of Assets and Liabilities
and the results thereof should be documented
based on our understanding of the business and the
related control environment and after making
inquiries with the Management:

a) Review the groupings to ensure that the assets
and liabilities are correctly classihed. Ensure
that the grossing up is correctly done for
various receivable and payable balances.

b) Obtain and document reasons for variances
between the balances between both the periods.

c) Ensure that bank reconciliations are prepared
for all bank accounts and review the same for
any old or unusual reconciling items which are
material.

d) Inquire into the basis of provisioning for trade
receivables and other receivables / advances
and ensuring the adequacy thereof.

e) Review the nature of items under prepaid
expenses and the appropriateness thereof.

f) Review the schedule of various trade and other
payables and inquire into any old outstanding
items which need to be written back.

I Review the basis of valuation of investments
and ascertain whether any provision is required
for diminution in the value of long term
investments which is other than tempora4r.

NB:-
1. Obtain balance confirmations for all related

party.
2. In respect of various employee benefits, obtain

an actuarial valuation report.

7

Perform impairment testing on all balances of the
component, with particular emphasis on Inventory

IMPNRMENT TESTING:. Not Applicable

,zffi\



Nila lnfrastructures Group

Prepared by
Name: CA S. Vijavargiya
Designation: : Partner
Date: l"t May, 2025

Sr.
No.

Procedure

and Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE).
Additionally, conduct thorough recoverability
testing for balances payable to the group entity,
including loans and equity capital from Nila
Infrastructures Limited, as recorded in the
component's books.

8 Basis of Capitalisation of Borrowing Cost & Other
Expenses:-

Evaluate the basis of capitalisation of borrowing
costs and other related expenses in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards and policies.
Verifying the appropriateness of costs capitalised,
ensuring they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, and confirming compliance with the Group's
finaacial reporting framework. Assess the
methodolory, allocation rationale, and period of
capitalisation, and report any deviations or issues
for further consideration by the Group Auditor.

9 Perform subsequent event review and comment if
there are any events which may impact the hnancial
information or may require a disclosure

7

Remarks
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Ni la I nfiastructures Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 3l March 2025

l. Corporate Information

Nila Infrastructures Limited is a Company based in Ahmedabad, Gujarat with its Registered Office
situated at I't Floor, Sambhav House, Opp. Chief Justice Bungalow, Bodakdev, Ahmedabad - 380015.

Nila Infrastructures Limited is a public company incorporated on 26ft February, 1990 and listed on

BSE (Bombay Stock Exchange of India Limited) and NSE (National Stock Exchange of India
Limited). The Company is involved in the construction as well as development of infrastructures
projects.

Basis of preparation and nrcasurcmcnt

2.1 Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards ('Ind AS') as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2025 have been reviewed by audit
committee and subsequently approved by Board of Directors at its meetings held on 30s April 2025.

Details of the Company's material accounting policies are included in note 3.

11 Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ({), which is also the

Company's functional curency. All the amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless

otherwise stated.

2.3 Basis of Measuremcnt

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the

following items:

2.4. Use r.rf cstimatcs and judgcmcnts

In preparing this standalone financial statement, management has made judgements, estimates, and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are

recogrized prospectively.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and the

assumptions that have most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

Items

Net defined benefit plans

Land and transferable development rights

Receivables

Measuremcnt basis

Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit

obligation using key actuarial assumptions

Fair value of land and hansferable development rights using

applicable market inputs

the next financial year, are included in the following notes:



Ni la I nfrastructures Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2025

2.5.

Basis of prcparation and mcasurement (Continued)

Note 3(g) - Evaluation of percentage completion for the purpose of revenue recognition

Note 3(d) - Identification of the building & fumiture & fixtures as an investment property

Note 3(b) - Useful life used for the purpose of depreciation on properly, plant and equipment and

investment properties and amortisation of intangible assets

Note 3 (e), (i) - Impairment of financial and non-fmancial assets

Note 3 (q) - Lease classification

Note 3 (f) - Recogrition and measurement of defined benefit obligations, key actuarial assumptions

Note 3 (i) - Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Note 3 O - Current / deferred tax expense and recognition and evaluation of recoverability of
deferred tax assets

Note 3(l) - Provisions and contingencies

Mcasurcnrcrrt of lair valucs

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures requires the measurement of fair values for
financial instruments.

The Company has established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The

management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as

far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different

levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entity in the

same level of fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The Company recogrizes transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the

reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following

notes:

Note 5 - Investment proPertY

Note 38 - Financial instruments



3.

Ni la I nfiastructures Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2025

M atcrial accounting policies

a) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
Operating cycle for project related assets and liabilities is the time start of the project to their
realization in cash or cash equivalents. Operating cycle for all other assets and liabilities has been

considered as twelve months.

b) Property, plant and cquipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including non-

refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then

they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of properfy, plant and equipment is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Su bsequent measurcment

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Dcprcciation

Depreciation is being provided on a pro-rata basis on the 'Straight Line Method' over the

estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies

Act, 2013. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance

Sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets.

Dcrecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or

when no future economic benefits are expected from its use of disposal. The consequential gain or

loss is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price, including any import duties and

other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any

directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use.



Ni la I rrfiastructures Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 3l March2025

3. Matcrial accounting policies (Continued)

c) Intangible assets and amortisation (conlinued)

Subsequent Erpenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. All other expenditure is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight - line basis (pro-rata from the date of additions) over
estimated useful life up to five years.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecogaized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of intangible assets and is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

d) lnvestment I'roperty

Investment property is property held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course ofbusiness, use in the production or supply ofgoods
or services or for administrative purposes.

llecogn ition and measu rement

Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation

Depreciation is being provided on a pro-rata basis on the 'Straight Line Method' over the

estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies

Act, 20 13. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment properties

equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Fair value disclosure

The fair values of investrnent property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an

independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional qualification and has recent

experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recogrized in Statement of Profit and

Loss.

c) lmpairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets of the Company, other than inventories and defened tax assets, are reviewed

at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated'

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together

into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that

generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or



3.

Nila I nfiastructures Limited
Notes fornring part of the standalone financial statem ents (Continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2025

Matcrial accounting policies (Contin ued)

e) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recogrized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

0 Entplo.v-ee benefits

Short term cmplovec bcnefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted expenses and are
expensed as the related services are provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to
be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Dcfi ncd contribution p!:tns

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards govemment administered
schemes. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an

employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the
services are rendered by the employees.

Dcfincd benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than defined contribution plan.
The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each

plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that ernployees have eamed in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value ofany plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed periodically by an independent
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and
the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect ofthe asset ceiling (ifany, excluding
interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). Net interest expense
(income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to
measure the net defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and

defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

other lated to

I
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 3l March2025

3. Material accounting policies (Continued)

I) Employee benefits (Continued)

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized irnmediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employ'ee bcnefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of longterm employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefits that employees have eamed in retum for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefits is discounted to determine its present

value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis

ofan annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurement gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise.

g) Revenuc rccognitfuln

(i) Construction and infrastructurccontracts

Performance obligations with reference to construction and infrastructure contracts are satisfied
over the period of time, and accordingly, revenue from such contracts is recognized based on
progress of performance determined using input method with reference to the cost incurred on
contract and their estimated total contact costs. Revenue is adjusted towards liquidated damages,

time value of money and price variations/escalation, wherever, applicable. Variation in contract
work and other claims are included when it is highly probable that significant reversal will not
occur and it can be measured reliably and it is agreed with customers.

Estimates of revenue and costs are reviewed periodically and revised, wherever circumstances
change, resulting increases or decreases in revenue determination, is recognized in the period in
which estimates are revised.

The Company evaluates whether each contract consists of a single performance obligation or
multiple performance obligations. Where the Company enters into multiple contracts with the same

customer, the Company evaluates whether the contract is to be combined or not by evaluating

various factors as prescribed in the standard.

(ii) Land and transferrable dcvclopmcnt rights

Revenue from contracb for sale of land and transferable development rights is recognised at a
point in time when control is transferred to the customer and it is probable that consideration will
be collected. This is usually deemed to be legal completion as this is the point at which the

Company has an enforceable right to payment. Revenue from sale of land and transferrable

development rights is measured at the transaction price specified in the contract with the customer.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the

customer e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,

unbilled revenue is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.
l.e.
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2025

3. Material accounting policics (Continued)

g) Revenue recognition (continucd)

Trade receivables

A receivable represenb the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

(iii) Lease rcntal income

Lease income from operating leases shall be recognised in income on a straight line basis over the
lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use

benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Income from leasing of commercial complex is
recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with lease agreements. Refer note 3(q) for accounting
policy on leases.

h) Other income

Interest income from financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate

applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income and share of profit in LLP is recognized when the right to receive the same is

established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

Company and amount can be measured reliably.

i) Financialinstrunrent

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss on the basis of its
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.

lnitial recognition and measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value, in case of financial assets
which are recogrrized at fair value tlrough the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL), its
transaction cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other case, the transaction
costs are attributed to the acquisition value ofthe financial asset.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at

o Financial assets at amortized cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

.!
o

s

+

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment is recognized in
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Material accounting policics (Continued)

i) Financial instrunrent (continued)

Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recogrized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

o Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

o Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the Statement of Profit and

Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains or losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except ifand in the period the

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Tratlc rcccivablcs and loans

Trade receivables and loans are initially recognized at fair value when they are originated.

Subsequently, these assets are held at amortized cos! using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash

income through the expected life of financial instrument.

Iiquity instrument

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at

fair value, the Company may, on initial recogrition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either

at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognized as other income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value

changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI.

Amounts recognized in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognized as 'other income' in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

Dcrecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of the financial asset) is primarily derecognized

when:

a) The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

b) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

c) The Company has neither transfened nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control ofthe asset.

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other

than financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per

Ind AS 109, the Company recognizes 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or

acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements (Continued)
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3. Material accounting policics (Continued)

i) Financial instrument (continued)

i)

increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as

lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on furancial asset increases significantly since its

initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing
component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time
expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

I nitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost

unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of
trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are

held at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

Subsequent measuremcnt

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial

liabilities carried at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss are measured at fair value

with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecogrrized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,

cancelled or expires.

Oll'sctting of tinancial instru tncnts

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet date if there is a cunently enforceable legal right to offset the recogrized amounts and there

is an intention to settle them on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

lncome tnxes

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of Profit and

Loss except to the extent that it is relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the

year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount

of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after

considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.

It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date. Cunent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable

right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability

on a net basis or simultaneously
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3. Material accounting policies (Continued)

j) Income ttxes (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recogaized in respect of canied forward tax losses and tax
credits. Defened tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used.

k) lnventorics

Inventory comprises of land, project inventories and work in progtess in case of construction and

development of infrastructure projects. Inventories comprising of land is valued at lower of cost
or net realizable value. Cost includes cost of land, borrowing cost and other related overhead as

the case may be.

Projcct invcntories

Inventories of project materials are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Cost is
arrived at on weighted average method (WAM) basis.

\iVork-in-progress

Construction and development of lnfrastructure project:

Cost incurred for the contract that relate to future activity of the contract, such contract cost are

recognized as an asset provided it is probable that they will be recovered. Such costs represent an

amount due from the customer and are often classified as Contract work in progress which is

valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less.

D Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized il as a result of past events, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by

discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure

required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are

not provided for.
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3. Material accounting policics (Continued)

l) I'rovisions and contingencies (continued)

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed for:

i. possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the
control of the Company, or

ii. present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

m) Borrorving Cost

Bonowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the

arrangement of borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period oftime to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalized, if any. All other bonowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

n) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the

Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company. For
the disclosure on reportable segments see Note 34.

o) Cash and cash equivalenls

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in

hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or
less and other short term highly liquid.

p) lnvestnrents in subsidiaries, joint venture and associates

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in subsidiary and associate and joint
venture companies at cost in accordance with the option available in lnd AS 27, Separate

Financial Statements.

q) Leases

Ind AS l16 Leases introduces single accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets

and liabilities for all leases subject to recognition exemptions. The Company adopted Ind AS I l6
Leases using modified retrospective approach and practical expedients.

At the inception of a contract, the Company :rssesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains a lease ifthe contract conveys the right to control the use ofan identified

asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the

right to control the use of an asset the Company assesses whether:

+
o

J.

o
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3. Material accounting policies (Continued)

q) Leases (continued)

The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capability of a
physical distinct asset. Ifthe supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not

identified.
The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the

asset throughout the period ofuse; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it
has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose

the asset is used.

As a Lessee

Right of use ,4sset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement

date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost which

comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the

lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incuned by the lessee in dismantling and removing the

underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the

condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

I-ease Liability
At the commencement date, a tessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the

lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. lf that rate cannot be

readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's incremental borrowing rate.

Sfutrt-term lease und leuscs of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short- term

leases that have a lease term of less lhan 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets,

including IT Equipment. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these

leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The election for short-term leases shall be made by class of underlying asset to which the right of
use relates. A class of underlying asset is a grouping of underlying assets of a similar nature and

use in Company's operations. The election for leases for which the underlying asset is of low

value can be made on a lease-by-lease basis.

r) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the

equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and

for all the years presented is adjusted for events such as bonus shares, other than conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a

corresponding change in resources.

profit for the period attributableFor the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net

to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares

adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive potential equity shares.

*
o

outstanding is
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s) Foreign currercy transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the

Company at the exchange rates as at the date of transaction or at an average rate if the average

rate approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the

exchange rate when the fair value was detennined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are

measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the

date of transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

t) Recent accounting pronouncement

Recent accounting pronouncements effective from April 01,2024s:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing

standards under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, as issued from time to tirne.

There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 01,2024.
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LIST OF RBLATED PARTIES IDENTIFIED AS PER II\DIAN GAAP

(A) Subsidiaries Nila Terminal (Amerli) Private Limited

(B) Associate Vyapnila Terminals (Modasa) Private Limited

(C) Joint venture Kent Residential and Industrial Park LLP

Romanovia Industrial Park Private Limited

(D) Enterprise in which Key Managerial
Personnel have significant influence

Sambhaav Media Limited

Sambhaav Nascent LLP

SML Digital Media P\4 Ltd

Nila Spaces Limited

(E) Key Managerial Personnel Manoj Vadodaria - Chairman and Managing
Director
Anand B. Patel - Chief Operating Officer

Darshan M. Shah - Chief Financial Officer

Dipen Parikh - Company Secretary

(F) Non-Executive Director Kiran B. Vadodaria

Dilip D. Patel

Deep S. Vadodaria

(G) Independent Director Shyamal S. Joshi

Foram B. Mehta

Revant Akshaybhai Bhatt

Dharini Shah
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